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CHAIR MOLINA: .. . (gavel). .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for February 28 t \ 2006 is now in
session. For the record, we have in attendance Vice-Chair Kane, Members Carroll, Mateo, Tavares, and
Pontanilla. Excused is Member Johnson.
Members, we have three items on our agenda today. Excuse me, I should say maybe four ... two, three,
four, excuse me, and two of 'em are rather large. But before we do that the Chair will be entertaining
testimony from the public. Prior to recognizing our testifier today, the Chair would also like to mention
who is in attendance as far as staff goes. We have our Staff Analyst Shelly Espeleta, Committee
Secretary Clarita Balala; and from the Corporation Counsel's Office, we have Tracy Fujita-Villarosa;
and from the Mayor's Office we have Mr. Dave DeLeon.
Our first testifier today will be the Mayor, Mr. Alan Arakawa, and the opportunity to testify for the rest
of the public is still open right now. And as a reminder, you have three minutes to testify with a minute
to conclude and please tum off all cell phones and pagers so as not to disrupt our proceedings today.
Good morning, Mr. Mayor.
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..

MR. ARAKAWA: Good morning, Mr. Molina, Chairman. Good morning, Council Members. I'm testifying
this morning on COW Item 43, Advisory Committees. I've distributed to each of you the OIP, Office of
Information Practice, letter that Dave DeLeon got back in reference to advisory committees and
appointed committees by the Mayor, and we did this because there was a move earlier to try and
formalize the committees. One of the reasons why we are proposing that we don't formalize the
committee, and I'm asking that you not codify this because if you do codify it, then everything does
become subject to the Sunshine Law and it's going to require us to become very formal in how we do
our advisory committees. And the advisory committees intent, in the case where I have advisory
committees, are really to give me advice on what's happening in the community and it needs to be fairly
loose in how it's done. Essentially, I have committees, for instance, on boards and commissions. And
the boards and commissions, the reason that we're doing it is because we want to have an unbiased
recommendation and we want to have more people searching for boards and commission members than
just the Administration. We want to keep it very balanced. And I've often said that, you know, anytime
any of you Council Members want to put a name for nomination for boards and commissions, all you
have to do is send it up and it gets processed. And I get those and unless we can find something
dramatically wrong with it, like a criminal record or something, normally those are the names that I
submit to the Council.
Now you do have some time limits on how long we can take to be able to process and get you names,
and if we formalize it, then we're gonna have to go to the formal process of doing public notice for
every meeting. Committees like the boards and commissions committee that I have all come under the
Sunshine Law or will open up to Sunshine Law, which requires us to be able to give them attorneys,
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which will require us to be able to keep minutes and be able to have to post all those minutes and keep
records of all the minutes, and we were having discussions as, for instance, like who should be put on a
board or commission. If all of that information has to become public information, it will be very
difficult to get people to volunteer to be on boards and commissions.
Now, there has to be some practical common sense when we're talking and we're asking people, for
instance, would you like to be on a board and commission because none of these we have to actually go
out and search. So each of the commission members have to go out and we're asking them to search in
the community for people to come in and apply for these boards and commissions. And look at the
sheer number of board and commission members, you'll understand that unless we can really reach out
in the community, it's difficult to keep a lot of these boards and commissions staffed with the proper
number of members in the timely manner-MS. ESPELETA: Three minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA: --that is now required. So I'm going to ask you to really reconsider this. I'll tie up in just a
minute or so.
I really want to ask you to consider this. Once you codify this, then we would be required I believe to
go under the Sunshine Rules and we're going to take all the flexibility out of doing this. And as Council
Members you know that if you want to discuss something even if it's an emergency coming up before
the community, you have to post it, send it to committee, and it takes forever to get an actual formal
presentation, and these advisory committees really should not be formal. The formal committees are the
ones that we actually have as formal commissions. So I'm asking you not to pass this unless you are
willing to make sure that we have all the additional money and funding and the staffing to be able to
provide for these committees. And as is, some of these committees we don't have a department that we
would be able to put-MS. ESPELETA: Four minutes.
MR. ARAKAWA: --the staffing for. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Mayor. Committee Members, questions for the Mayor? Seeing none.
Thank you, Mayor Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Secretary, do we have any additional sign ups for public testimony for our
agenda items?
MS. BALALA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. At this time, oh, I think we may have one. Ms. Correa, you can go ahead and give
testimony and you can sign up after.
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MS. CORREA: Okay. Thank you very much. Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MS. CORREA: Good morning, Chair Molina, and Council Members. It's great to see you all this morning and
I'm standing here because I know one of the names that has been submitted for ... to serve on a
commission is Nane Aluli who is also the Chair of the Maui Hotel and Lodging Association. I stand
before you to speak on his character. As the Board Chair, Nane, I must say is a man that is of high
standards, very credible, trustworthy, and I'm sure one that will really serve the County of Maui very
well by being on the Ethics Commission. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Correa. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you, Ms. Correa.
MS. CORREA: Thank you very much .

... END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY ...
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, the Chair will leave the public the opportunity to testify another 20 minutes. So
at 9:30 the Chair will close testimony for our agenda items today, if there are no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members. Members, the Chair will beg your indulgence in
terms of proceeding with our Committee items today. The Chair has a preference for first addressing
Committee of the Whole Items 2(17) and 2(18) because we do have some nominees who are in the
gallery who have made themselves available for any questions by you, the Committee Members, and
after we take those two items, we will then take on Committee of the Whole Item 1(30), to be followed
by our last item, Committee of the Whole 43. Any objections to proceeding in that manner?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
COW-2(17)

NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS

(VARIOUS)

(CC. No. 05-20)

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very mueh. So ordered. Our first item today we're now taking in this
order is Committee of the Whole Item 2(17), nominations to boards, committees, and commissions. The
Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated January 30, 2006, from the Mayor, requesting
consideration of the following: the nominees to the boards, committees, and commissions requiring
Council approval or disapproval within 60 days for terms expiring on March 31, 20 II unless otherwise
indicated. Members, what I'm gonna do I'm gonna go down the list here for this first item. It is
somewhat lengthy so please bear with me just so the public can hear who's being nominated and for
what board or commission.
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First of all, for the Affirmative Action Advisory Council, we have Larry Laird for reappointment. For
the Animal Control Board, Roger Kehler, for a , .. I guess who will serve as a veterinarian on this board
to be considered for, this for a term expiring on March 31, 2009, and also Malcolm Findley for a term
expiring on March 31, 2009. For the Board of Code and Appeals, Albert Rabold and Donald Sheridan.
For the Board of Ethics, Nane Aluli and Jocelyn Bouchard. For the Board of Variances and Appeals,
Jersula Manaba from Molokai, replacing John "Keone" Ball, for a term expiring on March 31, 2007.
We have also as nominees, William Kamai and Randall Endo. For the Board of Water Supply, Lee
Aldridge replacing Sarah ... Sarah Sally Raisbeck, for a term expiring on March 31, 2009, Michael
Howden, and Kuilauokalani Lester of Molokai. For the Civil Service Commission, Abe Kaahui. For
the Commission on Children and Youth, Rafael Boritzer, that is for a reappointment, and Lydia Lee,
nominated to this commission from Molokai. For the Commission on Culture and the Arts, Richard
Obley, as a reappointment, and Albert Molina. For the Cost of Government Commission, Robert
Mason, for a term expiring on March 31, 2008; Steven Schultz, for a term expiring on March 31, 2008;
Keith Moniz, for a term expiring also on March 31, 2008; Frederic Schwettmann, for a term expiring
March 31, 2008; also John Lundin, for a term expiring on the same month, day, and year as I mentioned
earlier for the others; and Terry Driskell, for a term expiring also on March 31, 2008; and Albert
Newsham, for reappointment for a term expiring also on March 31, 2008. For the Council on Aging,
Karey Anne Oura, Nancy Leano, Joe Whitley, Doreen Forsberg, and Peter Durkson. For the Fire and
Public Safety Commission, Ella Alcon of Molokai, replacing Leonida Leano Molina, for a term expiring
on March 31, 2007; Andrew Dela Cruz of Lanai, replacing A. Douglas Daguay, for a term expiring on
March 31, 2010. We have May Fujiwara, and also, Stephanie Crivello, being considered as nominees
for the Fire and Public Safety Commission. For the Hana Advisory Committee, Shane Sinenci, as a
reappointment, and Dawn Lono. For the Lanai Planning Commission, Michael Gannon, replacing
Bruno Amby, for a term expiring on March 31, 2007; Sally Kaye, replacing Stella Del Rosario, for a
term expiring on March 31, 2010; Beverly Zigmond and Travis Scott Otto. These are individuals being
recommended for the Lanai Planning Commission. For the Liquor Control Adjudication Board, Donald
Fujii and Glenn Kunitake. For the Liquor Control Commission, Ron McOmber of Lanai, replacing
Mary Cabuslay, for a term expiring on March 31, 2010. Also being considered are Arsene "Blackie"
Gadarian and Edwin Yokouchi. For the Maui County Commission on Persons with Disabilities, Barbara
Barnhart and Patricia Stewart. For the Maui County Cultural Resources Commission, Veronica
Marquez of Molokai. For the Maui County Grants Review Committee, Susan Bendon and Albert
Nyberg. For the Maui Planning Commission, Jonathan Starr and John Guard IV. For the Molokai
Planning Commission, Joseph Kalipi and Steven Chaikin. For the Police Commission, John "Keone"
Ball and Sean Connolly of Molokai. For the Real Property Tax Review Board, Michael Blaz. For the
Salary Commission, Mario Arruiza and Thurston Robinson. For the Street Lighting Committee, Maria
Isotov-Chang. For the Kula Agricultural Park Committee, Geoffrey Haines is a reappointment, and
James Jones. For the Maui Redevelopment Agency, Doug McLeod. For the Commission on Status of
Women, Emma Fay, for a term expiring on March 31, 2010; and Jeannie Park, for a term expiring also
on March 31, 2010; and Shirley Hartley as a reappointment, for a term expiring also on the same date.
For the Maui County Arborist Committee, Terry Nutt as a reappointment, also William Jacintho and
Jeannie Pezzoli, and for the Traffic Safety Council, David Olsten.
Thank you very much, Members, for that rather lengthy presentation. With that said, I will yield the
microphone over to Mr. DeLeon, the representative from the Mayor's Office, to give some comments.
Mr. DeLeon.
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MR. DELEON: Good morning. This is our major replacement for the annual replacement of boards and
commissions - 70-some odd individuals plus we had a few that they were going to show up in the next
item that we had to recruit separately for because we didn't have the right names for them. So we have a
few more coming in the next item as well. Mr. Guard is here today to be interviewed as requested.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Committee Members, any questions to Mr. DeLeon? I would also like to highlight
your attention to a February 22, 2006 document from the Mayor's Office I guess updating the
Committee with regards to the nominees for the Arborist Committee and Cost of Government
Commission. So I would just like to alert your attention to that as well. Committee Members, I'll open
the floor up for questions to Mr. DeLeon. We'll start with Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. DeLeon, good morning.
MR. DELEON: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Wanted to just ask you a question regarding your ... the Administration's
recommendation for the Police Commission, John "Keone" Ball, who is being replaced on another
committee. Can you tell if this is his actual term expired in that committee or he's getting ...
MR. DELEON: No. He resigued from that position.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: To get on to this commission?
MR. DELEON: Yeah. He had really wanted to be on the Police Commission and he served on the Board of
Variances at our request. He had one of the short terms where he had like 2 Yz years on the commission
but because the Charter requires over two years that you have to step away for two years. We could not
reappoint him. It frustrates a lot of our members when that happens because, you know, they get tuned
up. They're really involved in the body that they are appointed to and they are really trying hard and
then they find out that they can't be reappointed right when they actually learn something and ready to
go do some work.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. But it's not the Administration's position to, to temporarily fill
positions just so they can get into another commission at a later time.
MR. DELEON: Not generally. No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. And also regarding the Molokai Police Commission's
nominee, can you tell me how many applicants was actually part of that consideration?
MR. DELEON: We didn't enumerate Molokai's out from the rest. We usually get about 70 applicants for
Police.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And can you tell what is the criteria ...
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MR, DELEON: I'm sorry, That's a little bit much. I would say more like 40 this year.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, but Molokai not necessarily has a separate commitment to the
committee ... to the commission?
MR. DELEON: There was a vacancy. Mr. Alcon was leaving the commission and so we were trying to fill a
Molokai slot on it, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So can you tell me what the criteria is when you take a look at the
filling?
MR, DELEON: We're looking for upstanding members of the community who've demonstrated a willingness
to work in the community. Mr. Connolly has been a sports coach for a number of years on Molokai and
he's a small businessman on Molokai. Personally, I think anybody on Molokai is a small businessman.
A successful small businessman deserves a medal. So I think he has demonstrated his abilities over the
time and he has expressed an interest.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And was, was Mr. Connolly, was this the recommendation of the
committee that reviews and makes the recommendations?
MR, DELEON: Yes, it was.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mateo. As a follow-up to Mr. Mateo's question with regards to the
policy ofI guess an example with Mr. Ball, who's I guess was sort of biding his time on the Board of
Variances awaiting an opening for the Police Commission, do we have any other board or commission
members who are in that unique situation, Mr. DeLeon?
MR. DELEON: None come to mind, sir.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MR, DELEON: I don't believe there is anyone else.
CHAIR MOLINA: Alright. Thank you. Committee Members, any other questions for Mr. DeLeon with
regards to the nominees to the various boards and commissions? Seeing none.
MR, DELEON: I'd like to mention that-CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: --Mr. Ball is willing to serve on both but we thought it would be better because we had to
advocate ... we had plenty of other individuals willing to serve on the BV A this time around so we
didn't really need to have him stay there. But he was willing to do both.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. And before we open up the floor for more questions or the
opportunity to ask questions I should say, the Chair would like to recognize Member Johnson, as well as
Member Hokama, to our proceedings this morning. Okay, Members, seeing that there are no questions
for the time being, the Chair will make a recommendation. There have been some requests to have the
nominees ... nominees to the various boards and commissions to be here this morning. The Chair will
first make his recommendation for separation of nominees for separate discussion and action.
The Chair is going to request separation for the nominees to the Board of Ethics, Nane Aluli and Jocelyn
Bouchard; Jersula Manaba, William Kamai, and Randall Endo for the Board of Variances and Appeals;
Steve Schultz for the Cost of Government Commission; Ella Alcon and Stephanie Crivello of the Fire
and Public Safety Commission; Dawn Lono of the Hana Advisory . . . for the Hana Advisory
Committee; Travis Scott Otto of the Lanai Planning Commission; John Guard IV of the Maui Plarming
Commission; Steve Chaikin of the Molokai Planning Commission; John "Keone" Ball of the Police
Commission. Are there any other requests for separation? Okay, seeing none. If that is the case,
Members, the Chair will entertain a motion to approve all board and commission nominees who have
not been requested for separation.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Tavares, seconded by Member Pontanilla. Discussion,
Members? Member Tavares, as the maker of the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No discussion, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. With that being said, all those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Pontanilla,
and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Anderson.

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION:

APPROVAL of all other nominations to the Boards, Committees,
and Commissions who have not been requested for separation.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, we are back now to the nominees who have been requested for separation
for discussion and action. Our first board that we will discuss is the Board of Ethics, the nominees,
Nane Aluli and Jocelyn Bouchard. Now for the Committee's information, there was one Member that
requested their appearance here today. However, the Committee Chair has a policy of accepting three
... if there's a request by three Council Members or more, then the Committee Chair will make it a
mandate that the nominees appear. However, since only one Member asked, the Committee Chair did
not require these individuals to appear. However, they have ... the two nominees have come here by
their own accord to make themselves available for questionings if it is the will of this body. So I just
want you to be aware of that. They are in the gallery, Mr. Aluli and Ms. Bouchard. The request was
made by Member Anderson as a point of information for the body. Is there any ... would any Member
like to have the nominees come up or I will give the nominees an opportunity if they would like to make
a statement to the Committee as a point of . . . as I guess a courtesy to the body or if they'd like the
public to know who they are, I will give them that option as well. I don't see the nominees raising their
hands, well, okay, Mr. Aluli. Thank you. Members, any objections to proceeding in that fashion to
allow the nominees to give a few statements to you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Aluli.
MR. ALULI: Thank you, Chair Molina. Good morning, Council Members. Just wanted to introduce myself to
all of you. I've been around the community now for a while living on the West Side in Napili and this is
really going to be my first foray into the commission area and I look forward to it because I am involved
in our community and I think it's very, very important that more members of our community get
involved in the process to assist and advise on issues that are really important to our community. And
there are many issues both on the West Side and on the island that all of us as people who are
community members of this beautiful place that we live in. We need to get involved and so I thought it
was time that I step up to the plate and do so. So that's why I'm here and that's why I submitted my
name for the Ethics Commission and I appreciate the appointment and I look forward to serving and will
answer any questions that any of you might have.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Aluli.
Seeing none. Thank you, Mr. Aluli.

Committee Members, any questions for the nominee?

MR. ALULI: Great. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: The Chair will give the other nominee, Ms. Bouchard, the option of giving the Committee
Members an opening statement. And the Chair, again, thanks you both for coming here on your own
accord to make yourselves available to questions from the Committee. Ms. Bouchard.
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MS, BOUCHARD: Yes. Aloha and good morning, Member Molina and other Council Members. I think you
all know me. I'm Jocelyn Bouchard. I currently serve as the Executive Director for the Maui Humane
Society. I actually echo everything my fellow nominee stated which is that I'm very passionate about
this community and very proud to live on Maui and I do take my responsibility as a nonprofit director
very seriously and hope to expand on that service to my community by serving on this board. And, of
course, I'm always available to answer any questions you may have. Thank you for this opportunity.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Bouchard. Committee Members, any questions for the nominee? Seeing
none. Thank you. Next we'll address the nominees for the Board of Variances and Appeals. First we'll
... the Chair would like to deal with lersula Manaba, the nominee from Molokai. The Chair requested a
separation just to ask a question ofMr. DeLeon. Are there currently any other members on the Board of
Variances and Appeals that are from Molokai to your knowledge, Mr. DeLeon?
MR. DELEON: No. There isn't. There isn't.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. I'm just ... for curiosity's sake. Alrighty. Any questions or issues
regarding Ms. Manaba's nomination to Mr. DeLeon at this time? Seeing none. The Chair will move on
to the next ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR MOLINA: I'm sorry. Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just want to speak in support of a Molokai representative on the Board of
Variances and Appeals, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I know Ms. Manaba. She has been a very active community volunteer in
different types of boards and organizations. I think it's ... besides helpful, I think it should be required
that we have our sister islands participate because, Mr. Chairman, they know full well the unique
situations that some of our rural communities face and when a request goes for a variance or an appeal
of a decision, they can appreciate and take those unique factors into account before making a decision on
the request for a variance or the appeal. I find it very helpful to have those from those types of
communities to participate. And I would encourage Administration to continue to seek out those from
our unique communities on the fringe areas, and I'm sorry if that's not the right term, but I think it's
critical for us to be able to make some good decisions in unique situations, Mr. Chairman. And I can
appreciate Mr. Mateo's island, as well as the unique situations Lanai faces, Mr. Chair. So I am in full
support of Ms. Manaba and her representation on this board. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Any other comments with regards to the nominee
from Molokai for the Board of Variances and Appeals? Seeing none. We will next move to our next
nominee, William Kamai. Again, there was just one Committee Member that requested Mr. Kamai's
appearance here and the Chair did not mandate that he be here to respond to questions from the
Committee. However, like our nominees for the Board of Ethics, I see Mr. Kamai has made himself
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available here in the gallery and I would like to ask Mr. Kamai if he would like to come up, I'll give
you the option if you want to go ahead and just give an opening statement just let the Committee or the
public know who you are and your reasons for wanting to be on this commission or board, I should say.
Good morning, Mr. Kamai.
MR. KAMAl: Good morning, Mr. Molina and Council Members. My name is Bill Kamai. I am an appointee
to the Board of Variances and Appeals. I'm looking forward to serving the people of Maui. I'm a
lifelong resident of Maui and I think with my knowledge and experience in construction I'd be serving
the people of Maui very well. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Kamai. Committee Members, any questions? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thanks very much, Bill, for coming. What capacity do you currently
serve in either your occupation or any union affiliation?
MR. KAMAl: I am currently Service Representative for the Hawaii Carpenters Union.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and what exactly does that entail?
MR. KAMAl: To serve our membership with ... make sure that they got the benefits paid on time. Make sure
that their working conditions is fair and within the limits of our contract.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And at any time, do you advocate for specific projects or specific
developments as a representative ofthat union?
MR. KAMAl: Yes, it is, when it involves job situations that would require a certain contractor to hire union
members for that particular job.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and because you are advocating for a union and oftentimes what
comes before Board of Variances and Appeals, even though they have a wide range ... a little bit more
than they used to have of duties, what would you do if you were faced with this situation where someone
came before you and it was a non-union situation that could potentially, if approved, harm your
membership?
MR. KAMAL: I think at the time I would have to look at the application itself and not judge anything before
then. Whether it be union or non-union I think I should be allowed the same fairness given the
circumstances of any of the other members on the board with regards to that application being a family,
a friend, a relative, or a neighbor, that I would be using my fair judgment in that situation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and you would not consider recusing yourselfthen?
MR. KAMAl: If at that time the application would warrant my recusing myself, then I will.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Committee Members, any other questions for the nominee?
Seeing none. Thank you, Mr. Kamai.
MR. KAMAl: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Our next nominee that I had requested separation for are Randy Endo for the Board of
Variances. Again, I did not mandate Mr. Endo for being here being that there was just one Committee
Member that asked for his appearance. He did indicate to the Chair there was a good chance he could be
here this morning but he had a somewhat busy schedule. So I don't see him here in the gallery yet so at
this point ifhe does come before we are finished with the ... I guess before taking action, then I will ask
him if he would like to appear before the Committee. Otherwise, we'll go ahead and take whatever
action is necessary with regards to his nomination. Any comments regarding Mr. Endo's nomination to
the Board of Variances and Appeals? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My only comment would be that on this particular Board of Variances and
Appeals I would also ask for separation of all three members or at least for the separation of
Ms. Manaba from Mr. Kamai and Mr. Endo.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So noted. Any other comments with regards to the nomination of Randy Endo to
the Board of Variances and Appeals? Okay, seeing none. At this time we shall move on. Next we have
the nominees for the Fire and Public Safety Commission, Ella Alcon and Stephanie Crivello. My ...
Chair has a question for Mr. DeLeon. Ms. Alcon, by the way, and Ms. Crivello are both on Molokai so
they were not mandated to be here. However, the Chair did have a question with regards to the nominee
... nomination of them for Mr. DeLeon. Now, I note here we have two members on ... from Molokai
to the Fire and Public Safety Commission. Can I ask why? Because I think in the past has there
normally been just one representative from Molokai and I'm just curious.
MR. DELEON: That's true, Mr. Chairman. In this particular case, the Mayor was given a list of possible
nominees for this particular slot ... for these slots and there was two very high quality Molokai
members on it that the Mayor thought that just because one of 'em ... both of 'em come from Molokai,
the one shouldn't be precluded so he decided to go with both. He pointed out also that the fact that
we're in the process of building a fire station over there and the community has a lot of fire-related
issues ... on-going fire concern. So having two Molokai members seemed pertinent in this particular
case.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Committee Members, any questions for Mr. DeLeon related to
the nominations ofElia Alcon and Stephanie Crivello. Okay, seeing none. Members, we shall move on.
Dawn Lono of the Hana Advisory Committee. Any ... the Chair requested separation for this because
there was a member that had expressed a concern with regards to Ms. Lono's nomination to the
committee. I believe ... Member Hokama, if you would like to speak on that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, no. I just was checking to see if whether or not we had any
internal policies regarding Council employees sitting on boards and commissions and whether or not
Council is comfortable in appointing its own employees. We have not found any rule or documentation
.. .(change tape). .. that would prohibit this Committee from making a recommendation to approve a
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employee's nomination that works for us. So I would say it's up to this Committee to make a
recommendation judgment on whether or not we would support the consideration, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Just to make it clear so there is ... we're talking about a Council Service employee
being nominated to a board or commission and the possibility there may be some ... I don't want to use
the word "conflict" but there may be some issues that could arise because of their work as a Council
Service person and then serving on a board or commission. Am I correct?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, it would be clear that they represent themselves. They have in no way
can represent or speak for the Committee or the Councilor a Member of the CounciL They're there as
an individuaL Again, you know, it's what is the comfort level of the body regarding its employees that
sit on various boards and commissions, which in turn will give recommendations to the body for ...
before final decision making, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I see.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So I ... we just reviewed whether or not we had personnel policies or
directives that might be able to help guide the Committee in this decision.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. I believe Ms. Alcon from Molokai is in somewhat of
a similar boat, if you will, because she is a Council Services employee there and she is being considered
for nomination to the Fire and Public Safety Commission. Okay. Thank you. Any other discussion
with regards ... Mr. CarrolL
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I've known Ms. Lono for many, many years. She does
work in the Council Services Office. She is very active in the community and she is well able ... her
ethics are the highest standards and in no way would she ever reflect poorly on Council Services in
taking up of her duties on this board. And I have every confidence that she will be an asset to the
community and to the County of Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. CarrolL Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I also think that where we have people who do have knowledge, a
working knowledge exist both with Ms. Alcon and also with Dawn. I think sometimes they ... we
overlook County employees because they can act as valuable resources. And if there were ever a
situation where there was an advisory opinion coming and there was some kind of conflict, I've every
confidence that these individuals would either recuse themselves or at least ask for some kind of
guidance regarding the conflict, but I believe that it's really important, particularly for advisory
committees where you're looking at I guess the benefit to the other members. Not necessarily providing
an opinion but giving some factual basis so that the people who are members of that committee would
be able to make a more intelligent decision. So I really see this as an asset and oftentimes individuals do
come forward with that kind of information. So I appreciate it and I thank them for offering to even do
this. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any other comments with regards to the nomination of
Dawn Lono to the Hana Advisory Committee? Seeing none. Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. DeLeon, you had
something to say.
MR. DELEON: Just for the Council's information, but the Charter explicitly allows for employees of the State
and County governments to participate in our boards and commissions, excuse me .... (coughed).
Charter Provision 13-2.7 is a very explicit statement in that effect.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Any other comments or questions to Mr. DeLeon or the
nominee for the Hana Advisory Committee? Seeing none. Okay, Members, we shall move on now.
Next matter is the Lanai Planning Commission and the nominee of Travis Scott Otto. Any comments
first from you, Mr. DeLeon, with regards to the nomination of Mr. Otto? If you could give us a brief
background and if you had a list of other nominees for consideration for the Lanai Planning
Commission, as well. Mr. DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: Actually, we've been very challenged to find nominees for the ... from Lanai Planning
Commission. We had a lot of resignations in that body and Mr. Otto's name came to us from the
community and it was approved through the Advisory Committee and explicitly through that we have a
member ofthe Advisory Committee from Lanai who brought his name to our attention.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Mr. Hokama, as the island representative, do you have
any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Simply, Chairman, I have a very difficult time having more than half of our
Planning Commission to be new residents that bave no history, no understanding of where we've come
from, why we had to come from that point, and where we are today. You know, I'll be happy to give
more names to the Mayor, but for me, I think the nominee could very well be a very good potential
commissioner in the future. Not at this time with three or four years of residency. I think our committee
deserves people that know our history, know the problems, know the commitments and promises made
for development of this island, and have the will to have it fulfilled and complied with, Chairman. You
know, we have already adopted earlier names so that's four already. Four people have very short history
with us. I cannot tell you how important the history of our island and what we havc gone through in the
last 20 years means for our community, Chairman. And I need people who can understand and
appreciate the transition we've made from a pineapple operation to this visitor industry. And what we
have had gains, we've had some very good advantages and improvements. I will also tell you we have
gone backwards in some areas, too, and it is not as some have anticipated. We have problems. We have
issues and they need people who can appreciate and know and have lived through it to help make us ...
provide us with the better decisions for the future, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Any other Member would like to speak on the
nomination to the Lanai Planning Commission before I recognize Mr. DeLeon? Mr. DeLeon, you
wanted to make some comments.
MR. DELEON: Just and I don't want to debate this issue. Ijust wanted to point out that when the GPAC went
through Lahaina ... I mean Lanai, it pretty much drained the pool as far as filling applicants. We're not
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putting people from the GPAC on the Planning Commission because the GP AC will report to the
Planning Commission. So that's left us a very limited pool. I wholeheartedly agree with Mr. Hokama
that when people with long histories in the community are willing to serve, then we will try to get 'em
up to the plate, but we need them to volunteer. We cannot hold a gun to anybody's head and march
them out to the Planning Commission. They have to be willing to come. And if we don't have the
applicants in, you know, I've made sincere requests from Mr. Hokama to get me the people that who are
willing to serve. I'm very much interested if you have somebody who is willing to take that position
that fits the criteria that you have. There's no real strong concern about this outside of, you know, this
gentleman applied at our request because we couldn't find the kind of applicant you were describing.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. DeLeon, the Chair has one question. Does the Administration have any
particular criteria for nominees to the various Planning Commissions at this time? I mean are you folks
looking at people who have certain background in zoning or land use?
MR. DELEON: Generally, no. I mean most of our boards and commissions don't do that. Most of our boards
and commissions are generalist. They're supposed to be people that can learn the ropes on the
commission. You know, some commissions like the Planning Commission probably, you know, the
Maui Planning Commission, you're gonna need somebody who's gonna be willing to do that long term
run and be able to put in the time and interest and it would be better maybe if they demonstrated an
interest in the topic already. For Lanai and Molokai Planning Commissions, it's stricter because you
don't get that kind of ... that kind of body to deal with. On Lanai it's been really tricky because you
can't employ members of the Castle and Cooke employee base to that commission so those folks are out
of the picture. You lost about, you know, 90 percent ofthe workforce and you're stuck with the teachers
and, and the mailman and the other folks who have other kinds of employment aren't willing to serve.
When you're talking about a base population of 3,000 people then you take out the far majority of the
employee base that you can appoint from and then you put the GPAC into the middle of it, you're pretty
limited. I mean it cuts you back to ... I'm not sure if I'm gonna be able to come up with a name to
replace Mr. Otto anytime soon.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Questions for Mr. DeLeon with regards to the nominee to the
Lanai Planning Commission? Seeing none. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. We'll move on now to the
nomination of the Maui Planning ... the nominee for the Maui Planning Commission, John Guard N.
The Chair did request Mr. Guard to come to the Committee to I guess give an opening statement and
respond to any questions the Committee may have. So I would like to ask Mr. Guard ifhe could please
come on up to the lectern and give us an opening statement.
MR. GUARD: Good morning, Chair Molina, Council Members. John Guard, aka, J.B. Guard to most friends
and family. Lifelong resident of Maui - third generation here, fifth generation and beyond from Big
Island and Oahu. Appreciate the appointment or the nomination to be on the Planning Commission and
just look forward to the privilege of being able to serve in a I guess a larger capacity for the good of the
whole of the community ofMaui.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Thank you, Mr. Guard. Committee Members, questions for Mr. Guard at this time?
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you very much, Mr. Guard, for offering to serve. At this time
because I'm sure there are other people tbey would like to know what is your occupation and will that
occupation conflict with your ability to attend these oftentimes lengthy meetings at the Planning
Commission?
MR. GUARD: Yeah. I'm a real estate broker right now currently with my own office considering stepping
down from that position to have more of my own time. This is I guess it will take considerable amounts
of time, two full days a month minimum probably. I made a conscious decision a few years ago just to
start to try to give back more and mainly that was through coaching high school and I just feel like
there's probably a possibility that I can do more good for those kids by trying to help out for the future
of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and you don't see the time then as a problem because sometimes the
volumes of materials that you get require a lot of hours and dedication?
MR. GUARD: Yes. Luckily, I like to read. I enjoy the knowledge of what is happening to the island and just
I'm sure I'll be learning a lot on the ropes. I definitely don't know everything right now and I probably
won't know it when I get off this commission, if appointed. I'm willing to jump through those hoops to
read it and try to do the best I can. I don't want to come off, if appointed, by being the guy that didn't
do his homework.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Committee Members, any other questions for the nominee?
Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you. Thank you for offering to serve our community and our
County by volunteering for this board ... this commission. In this commission, if you are appointed to
it, will you then be able to focus on the Planning Commission business more than focusing on single
issues? Because quite, you know, we're all familiar with you because you send very long e-mails to all
of us and about varying topics and stuff. So I think it's great that you're that interested in it. But once
you are a Planning Commissioner, you would not be able to do that kind of thing - contacting Members
like that in that fashion. Are you willing to give that part of it up to serve on the commission?
MR. GUARD: Yes. That was ... yes, I am. I think that I'll be able to serve in a better capacity. That I'll have
information presented from the Planning Department, Clayton Yoshida, et cetera, that I'll have all the
facts in front of me like that, that you have. I mean there's a lot of tough decisions that are being made
and I realized that I'll have to step back and be more of looking at what's presented in front of me that
day.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
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MR. GUARD: And not, whether that's personal or anything, I gotta put some ofthat aside.
COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: How long have you been a real estate broker?
MR. GUARD: Broker, three years; agent, eight years.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Eight years here on Maui?
MR. GUARD: OnMaui.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: When did you come to Maui?
MR. GUARD: Within ... my dad was from Oahu and we moved here within a month of being born. I was
gonna get here but I didn't make it. So my parents opened the Pet Shop and I grew up in the Maui Mall.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay... .(laughter) . .. Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Committee Members, any other questions for the Planning
Commission nominee for Maui? Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, Mr. Guard, and thank you for putting your
name as a possible commissioner for the Maui Planning Commission. I just got a question ... kind of
curious. Have you ever developed land?
MR. GUARD: Just fixing up my own house and helping my dad acquire some land up in Kula that just the land
we don't want to block the view from where we spread my grandmother's ashes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. So I ask this question because in the Committee that I head,
there is a subdivision, John Guard. I don't know ifthat's your family's subdivision that was created.
MR. GUARD: We purchased nine acres.
Committee?

You're referring to the one in Kula that just came before the

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. GUARD: Yeah. We purchased the land right below my grandmother's house and we were able to do a lot
line adjustment and the roadway widening goes to this actual subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. No questions. Only comment. I've known Mr. Guard and his
family for many years. I probably know more about him than he realizes and he's always struck me as
somebody with true integrity and I think that he's well-qualified to be appointed to this position. I
- 17 -

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

February 28, 2006

would like to say, you know, a lot of times we talk as Ms. Jolmson said about, you know, the time that is
required, but I would like Mr. Guard and the public to know that serving on the Planning Commission or
any other commission can be done very well no matter what job you have. It's how you design to
conduct yourself and structure your time. And I and Mr. Pontanilla who was at that time Hawaiian
Telephone Manager, which had probably much more responsibilities than most people, can tell you that
it's not the job and our decision to go over there and say, well, you have a job that takes a lot of hours
and you're not qualified. Anyone can no matter what job you have. It's just the decisions you have to
make as you proceed. And I am sure that Mr. Guard is well able to divide his time to serve effectively.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Carroll. The Chair has one question for you, Mr. Guard. Just to
follow-up on Member Tavares' statements earlier about you sending various e-mails to each member.
Recently, you had expressed your views on a project on the West Side. Can I ask you how, as a
Planning Commissioner, you will approach the issue of growth? If you could comment?
MR. GUARD: Growth is definitely necessary on Maui and I'd hope I didn't come across wrong on that. It was
more an issue of quality growth and just making sure the County ... I think it was at the time it was an
issue of just making sure you are trying to implement between affordable housing and what are we
gonna do for traffic. Not trying to say one person has to pay for everything. We just need to before we
start having things go through I guess it's just to implement policies and that's, that's more what ... it
was based on discussion that you were having yourselves, I believe, Council.
CHAIR MOLINA: Can you define what is good growth I guess versus bad growth, or you know, quality
growth versus bad growth?
MR. GUARD: I guess I've listened to some people just saying that ideally you want a community where
everyone backs it up. That people aren't in this not in my backyard issue and I think there's issues of
that. I think Maui needs those resort developments there but I think we just need to make sure the
people on Maui have the jobs they want and they're able to also stay is my main concern. I guess for
my sister to buy a house or anyone else and I've had friends ... the only way they were able to move
back to Maui was I offered them to come live with me for two months until they could find a job here.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Committee Members, any other questions for Mr. Guard? Seeing none.
Oh, sorry. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chair. Good morning. Mr. Guard, thank you for being here.
MR. GUARD: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I guess the issue of you e-mailing Council Members is brought to the table. If you're
selected to be on the commission, how would you take Council Members coming and testifying before
you at the Planning Commission? How would you look at them ... would you see them as John Q.
Public, individual, or would you see them as County Council Member with maybe a different level of
influence on your decision?
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MR. GUARD: I think when people come up here, they say they're comiug up as a citizen. I was watching the
Water Committee meeting and people would get up there and they would say what hat they had put on
that day. I think if you were trying to come in and use your Couucil Member influence that that ... I
mean you might have an issue with the Corp. Counsel more than I do ... than I would have with you.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kane. Any other questions for the nominee for the Maui Planning
Commission? If not, thank you very much, Mr. Guard.
MR. GUARD: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Next matter to address is the nominee for the Molokai Planning Commission,
Steve Chaikin. I guess Chair has questions for Mr. DeLeon on his nomination. Were there other
members of the community considered for nomination on the Molokai Planning Commission or was it
like a situation on Lanai where there's a limit ... you're somewhat limited in the I guess the pool of
persons that you can select for a Planning Commission. Can I get comment from you, Mr. DeLeon?
MR. DELEON: Yes, sir. The situation on Molokai this year was unusual for us. Typically, Molokai we have a
difficult time finding nominees. This year we had a good stream of people willing to serve and
Mr. Chaikin was considered in a body of people. And I think about ... we had about three or four
names to give to the Mayor for those positions.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon.
comments on this nomination?

Member Mateo, as the representative from Molokai, any

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. DeLeon ... Chairman, I'll ask Mr. DeLeon a question before I ask his
question regarding the nominee. Who sits on your committee that does these selections for boards and
commissions?
MR. DELEON: Got to do it off the top of my head ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Who represents Molokai on this committee?
MR. DELEON: Shoots ... I'm drawing a mental blank on the name. It's actually the nominee for ... oh,
gosh, my memory's slight. Hold on .... (short pause) . .. Crivello ... Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and the way the selections are done is what criteria do they use in taking
a look at boards and commissions in their selection process and whether or not who they recommend ...
does those nominees get actually sent down here or are they changed by Administration?
MR. DELEON: There's a ... in the case of the Molokai nominations, there was about four persons for the
positions from the committee to the Mayor. The Mayor made the final choice.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So the recommendation that comes from the committee can be changed by
Administration?
MR. DELEON: You know, I'm ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: He makes the final call on whether or not ...
MR. DELEON: Mr. Chaikin was among the names on the list that went to ... that went to the Mayor for
consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much. That's ... I'm satisfied with that. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Any other questions related to the nomination ofMr. Chaikin
to the Molokai Planning Commission? Seeing none. We will move on. Next is the nomination to the
Maui, oh, excuse me, I guess Maui County Police Commission, John "Keone" Ball, and I see Mr. Ball
has made himself available. And I thank Mr. Ball for making himself available to all of us here for any
questions that you may have for him. Chair would like to ask you, Mr. Ball, if you could just give a
brief statement as to why you are seeking the seat on the Police Commission.
MR. BALL: Well, I'm seeking the seat ... good morning, everyone. I'm seeking the seat on the Police
Commission. I was previously on the Police Commission. I was filling a term which lasted two years.
I felt that my job there wasn't complete so I took my time off according to the Charter and now I am
seeking reappointment there to finish some of the things that I started when I was on there such as the IT
Program, getting the computers into the cars, streamlining some of the paperwork, working on the
morale issue of the Department, not only working on hiring new members but retaining the old, I
shouldn't say old, but retaining the people that work there now. So I believe I can accomplish that being
back on the Commission.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Ball. The reason I asked you to come, as well, was because you had
recently resigned from the BV A and then, you know, you applied for the Police Commission. So I just
wanted to get that issue out and I believe Mr. DeLeon answered that for the Committee. Committee
Members, any questions for Mr. Ball? Okay, seeing none. Thank you very much, Mr. Ball.
MR. BALL: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, I now would like to go back to the nominee for the Cost of Govemment
Commission, Steven Schultz. I'd like to get a comment from Mr. DeLeon. I believe there was a
problem with regards to getting I guess a signature on his application, as well as contacting Mr. Schultz.
Can you verify that for us, Mr. DeLeon?
MR. DELEON: That's correct. We can't ... he didn't sign his application and ... but that one slipped by us or
we wouldn't have nominated him, but you know, that was just the fact. So we went back to get the
signature and we couldn't find him. He might be off-island or whatever. I don't know what his story is.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Committee Members, any questions for Mr. DeLeon with
regards to the nomination of Steven Schultz for the Cost of Government Commission? Member
Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. So Mr. DeLeon, are you then saying that we should disapprove
Mr. Schultz because you can't find him or?
MR. DELEON: I, I really ... I have no idea what his status is right at this moment because I've been
repeatedly trying to reach him.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: For what period of time?
MR. DELEON: For the last couple weeks.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Couple weeks.
MR. DELEON: I actually sent him back the application to his mail spot for him to sign and return in case, you
know, he comes back and he doesn't get my message or something, at least he'll have it in the mail. But
we haven't gotten it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You haven't gotten it back yet?
MR. DELEON: Not yet, no. If you are asking me for a recommendation, you know, maybe no
recommendation on this particular individual and see whether we can get him before the final. And if
we don't have a signature on it and the ... it's the Council requirement to have the signature.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Ub-huh. Yes.
MR. DELEON: But you know, we prefer to have Council I mean commission members we can find, too,-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
MR. DELEON: --so it would be helpful. So if, you know, that might be one way to do it or you can make a
recommendation to deny and change it if we get the signature. I mean there are really any number of
ways to approach this.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair, maybe we would want to consider that just to hold off on the
appointment of Mr. Schultz. Unfortunately, our only recourse is to disapprove, but if we disapprove, at
least we can start the clock going again and in the meantime maybe Mr. Schultz will have returned or
gotten back in contact with us or with Mr. DeLeon and straighten that part of it out and could be
appointed again or submitted for appointment again.
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CHAIR MOLINA: So noted, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: I think that is a very good suggestion. Members, the Chair, I guess if there's first of all any
other comments or questions with regards to Mr. Schultz nomination to the Cost of Government
Commission? If not, the Chair would like to make the body aware of ... there was an oversight. It
relates to the same commission and the nomination of Terry Driskell. Now earlier we did a motion to
approve all of the other folks who weren't separated and Mr. Driskell was included in that. Upon further
review, I guess as you hear in the NFL season, Mr. ... there is a potential issue with Mr. Driskell's
nomination because he was supposed to replace an individual named Mr. Sean Cunningham, if you'll
note on your February 22 nd , 2006 letter from the Mayor's Office. But being that Mr. Cunningham, like
Mr. Schultz situation, they've had a difficult time getting Mr. Cunningham to submit a resignation letter.
In theory, Mr. Cunningham is still a member of the Cost of Government Commission. Therefore, at this
time because there's no resignation letter, he cannot ... if I'm correct, he cannot be replaced until a
resignation letter is received. Mr. DeLeon, would you like to comment?
MR. DELEON: I'm sorry about the confusion with this. Yes, this was an appointment that shouldn't have been
made because we didn't realize we didn't have a signed app ... a signed resignation at the time the
appointment was made, excuse me, ... (coughed) . .. however, we have since gotten that signed
resignation that has been sent to the Council Chair which is your ... the Council's protocol. So there is
nobody in that position right now. So I mean it's the Council's choice. If you want to hold off on
Mr. Driskell's until the next time around, for procedural purposes that's totally your call. Otherwise, the
positions at the ... Mr. Cunningham was finding it difficult to actually write a letter to us so we sent
him a letter and asked him to sign it and send it back to us and he did that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Members, at this time the Chair will call for the morning
break to confer with Staff to discuss the appropriate measures with regards to Mr. Driskell's nomination
and after that, then we will go through with taking action with the rest ofthe nominees that have been
requested for separation. So, Members, the Committee will be in recess until 10:20... .(gavel) . ..
. . .(change tape). ..
RECESS:

10:05 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:20 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. .(gavel). .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for February 28 th is now back in
session. Thank you very much for that break, Members, and prior to the Chair making a
recommendation on Mr. Driskell's nomination for the Cost of Government Commission, the Chair
would like to recognize Member Anderson's attendance to our proceedings today. Thank you for being
here. As I stated earlier, Members, we left off with Mr. Driskell's situation, and as Mr. DeLeon had
mentioned, there was a problem with getting a resignation letter from the person Mr. Driskell was
supposed to replace. So at this time the Chair is going to make a recommendation to reconsider the
nomination of Mr. Driskell. He was included in the earlier motion to approve all nominees who were
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not requested to be separated. So the Chair would like to ask for a motion to reconsider Mr. Driskell's
nomination to the Cost of Government Commission.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Hokana ... Hokama.
Any discussion? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
and PontanilJa, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

RECONSIDERATION of Terry
Government Commission.

Driskell

to

the

Cost

of

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members. At this time because of the situation Mr. Driskell
is in and the difficulty of getting a resignation letter from Mr. Cunningham, at this time the Chair is
going to recommend denial of Mr. Driskell to the Cost of Government Commission and it's based on
procedure and has nothing to do with Mr. Driskell's ability or character. So if there are no objections,
the Chair would like to entertain that motion to deny.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Hokama. Any discussion? Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question is am I to understand that subsequent to this there was a signed
letter received or is it still not received?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. DeLeon, could you comment on that.
MR. DELEON: Yeah. It has been sent to Council but it just hasn't made it to this Committee. It went to the
Chair of the Council yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So you have in effect received a letter of resignation then?
MR. DELEON: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. I guess it's all a matter of timing and being that it just came
in yesterday and the Committee still hadn't received it yet. At this point, again, the recommendation to
deny is based on a procedure. I would definitely like to have Mr. Driskell considered again at a future
meeting but it is just the Chair's opinion to make matters clean that we just deny at this time and once all
the i's are dotted and the t's are crossed and all the documents are officially in to the Committee, then
we can consider Mr. Driskell's nomination to the Cost of Government Commission. Any other
discussion on the motion? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Mr. Chair, I won't be supporting the motion. I think that we have the
assurance that the signed letter has been received. This would also come before Council which is where
we actually take the official action. This is a report and recommendation coming out of Committee.
Therefore, by the time that this reaches Council it would have been transmitted and received. So I see
no reason, unless it would not be received at that time and then I would agree, but I just think at this time
to move things forward and to allow our boards and commissions to conduct their business with a full
complement of members. I just see this as perhaps our procedural, you know, issue and I won't be
supporting the measure. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your comments, Member Johnson. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I, too, will be supporting the amendment. Just a
question in regards to the term limit. I see that all seven is March 31, 2008 and maybe when
Mr. Driskell as well as Mr. Schultz is contacted, that the expiring date be other than March 31, 2008. So
that according to the Charter, you know, we should have some staggered terms for continuation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Would Corp. Counselor Mr. DeLeon like to comment
on that?
MR. DELEON: Thank you ... thank you, Chairman. Yeah. We did comment in the February 22 nd letter that
there was an error with all one date appointments. There should have been two '07's in that list.
Mr. Driskell was one of those. So it gives the scattered you're talking about so it's not all lumped
together one time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Any other discussion to the motion on the floor? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I agree with Member Johnson. I don't see any reason
why we should defer this and delay getting somebody in there when the person they're replacing
obviously has resigned. I appreciate your concern but the letter has been received so I don't see any
reason why we should defer this. If there's any problem on first reading, we can deal with it then. It's
not going to put us back anymore than we're potentially being delayed now if we defer this. So I will
not support the motion. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other discussion as it
relates to the motion on the floor. Okay, seeing no other discussion. All those in favor signify by saying
aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Aye
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. The Chair will mark two noes, Members Anderson and Johnson. The motion passes
denying Mr. Driskell's appointment to the Cost of Government Commission, and again, it is based on
procedure and not on Mr. Driskell's ability or character.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Mateo,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

Councilmembers Anderson and Johnson.

ABSTAIN:

None.
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ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

DISAPPROVAL of Terry Driskell to the Cost of Government
Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, let us now ... we will go back to the top. The Chair will now take action
on the following board and commission nominees that were requested for separation. We will deal first
with the nominees for the Board of Ethics, Nane AluE and Jocelyn Bouchard. The Chair will entertain a
motion to approve.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Hokama. Any discussion?
All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Chair will mark that unanimous. Thank you.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of Nane Aluli and Jocelyn Bouchard to the Board of
Ethics.

CHAIR MOLINA: Next we will deal with the Board of Variances and Appeals. There's been a request for
separate action on each of the three nominees - that request made by Member Johnson. We will deal
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first with the nomination of Jersula Manaba from Molokai, replacing Keone Ball, for a term expiring on
March 31, 2007. The Chair recommends approval of the nominee.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Mateo. Any discussion? All those in favor
signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of Jersula Manaba to the Board of Variances and
Appeals.

CHAIR MOLINA: The next nominee we'll consider is William Kamai for the Board of Variances and
Appeals. The Chair will entertain a motion to approve.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Hokama. Discussion? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And again, this is ... I did have a discussion prior to this with
Mr. Kamai. I think that wherever you have a situation where you are placed in a position of conflict and
particularly because he does represent the Carpenters Union, I think that even the appearance of conflict
is not good and for me while I know this man, I know he's a really honorable person, I would prefer that
he serve on some other board or commission where this potential for conflict does not exist. And while
I respect that he would at least consider recusing himself, many times when you get into a situation such
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as this, I think that it puts the person at a disadvantage because most of the issues that he's going to be
dealing with are building issues, which have to do with carpentry, or other services that would be used
by members of his union, and I will not be supporting his nomination for that reason, Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson, Any other discussion as it relates to the motion on the floor
to approve Mr. Kamai's nomination to the Board of Variances and Appeals? Seeing none. All those in
favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Aye
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We have two noes, Members Anderson and Johnson.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Mateo, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

Councilmembers Andersou and Johnson.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION:

APPROVAL of William Kamai to the Board of Variances and
Appeals.

CHAIR MOLINA: Next we will consider the nomination of Randy Endo to the Board of Variances and
Appeals. The chair recommends approval of Mr. Endo's nomination to the Board of Variances and
Appeals.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Hokama. Discussion? Member
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One of the questions I had, is Mr. Endo on the General Plan Advisory
Committee?
CHAIR MOLINA: You know, that's a good question, Member Johnson. I really couldn't answer that for you.
We could maybe get an answer for you from Staff, if not today, at a later time.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. It's alright but I know that at some point I guess his name had come up
for one of ... maybe it was that, it was one of the possible nominees, and I can't remember all of them
right now. But for the same reason, Mr. Chair, my concern is that he is an attorney that has represented
many of the same people that may actually be coming before him before the Board of Variances and
Appeals through bis affiliation with Martin Luna and Company. And while he is currently the, you
know, not employed with them, he works with Maui Land and Pine, I think that many of the individuals
who may be coming in developments that are housed within many of the holdings of Maui Land and
Pine, I just think it's again very, very difficult to place people in positions where there is the potential
for conflict or even the appearance of conflict. I just have that as a general policy so I will not be
supporting him even though he's a very nice gentleman, but I will not be supporting the nomination.
Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any other comments as it relates to the motion on the floor
which is to approve Randy Endo to the ...
COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: Board of Variances and Appeals.
CHAIR MOLINA: I'm having a senior moment here - Board of Variances and Appeals. Thank you, Member
Tavares. Any other discussion? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: Aye
CHAIR MOLINA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We have ... let me double-check here. We have one, two ... Member Anderson
was that ... did you also take a no vote on the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I voted aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. You voted aye. I apologize. Okay, so we have two noes, Members Johnson and
Mateo. Okay, so let the record show the vote is seven to two with Johnson and Mateo voting no. Okay.
Thank you very much. The motion passes.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Pontanilla, and
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

Councilmembers Johnson and Mateo.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of Randall Endo to the Board of Variances and
Appeals.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, next we will deal with tbe ... I wanted to discuss the Cost of Govermnent
Commission nomination of Steven Schultz. Again, Mr. Schultz was in the position of not having his
application signed and there's been difficulty getting a hold of Mr. Schultz. For this particular matter,
the Chair is going to recommend denial of Mr. Schultz until we get a signed application, and again,
getting the i's dotted and the t's crossed. So the Chair will entertain a motion to deny. Again, it's a
procedural issue and until we officially hear from Mr. Schultz, I think it's the Chair's opinion to deny
for the time being and the Administration can always resubmit his name at a later time when we do have
a signed application.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Member Tavares. The motion again is to deny Steven Schultz nominee ... to
be nominated or to be considered for the Cost of Government Commission. Any discussion? All those
in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The motion passes. Mr. Schultz has been denied
nomination to the Cost of Government Commission. And again, the Administration has the option of
resubmitting his name at a later time when everything is in order.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

DISAPPROVAL of Steven Schultz to the Cost of Government
Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: Next is the Fire and Public Safety Commission. The nominees are Ella Alcon and
Stephanie Crivello. The Chair's recommendation is to approve the nominations of the individuals to this
commission.
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VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane and seconded by Member Mateo.
discussion? Seeing no discussion. All those in favor signify by saying aye.

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will make it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of Ella Alcon and Stephanie Crivello to the Fire and
Pnblic Safety Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: Next to the Hana Advisory ... for the Hana Advisory Committee. The Chair will approve
the ... is recommending approval of the nomination of Dawn Lono to the Hana Advisory Committee.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Tavares. Discussion?
Seeing no discussion. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Couucilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of Dawn Lono to the Hana Advisory Committee.

CHAIR MOLINA: Next we have the nominee for consideration to the Lanai Planning Commission, Travis
Scott Otto. The Chair has no recommendation on this and will leave it open to any Member on the floor
to make a recommendation on this nomination. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Move to disapprove.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, there's-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: --a motion to disapprove by Member Hokama and a second by Member Tavares. Member
Hokama, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: As in my earlier comments, Mr. Chainnan, I think Mr. Otto can ... I'll be
happy to talk with Mr. Otto and see if there's other boards and commissions that he would like to also
serve this County in and I'd be happy to support him in those efforts and I'll be happy to forward those
comments to Mr. DeLeon for consideration by ... for appointment by the Mayor. I think I'm very clear
on my sentiment about how I look at the commission, the importance and the role on the island of Lanai.
So I would ask the Members consideration on this motion, please. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, any discussion as it relates to
the motion on the floor. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Once again, you know, I have no problem with Mr. Otto or any member
serving when they want to give their time. I do respect what Mr. Hokama is saying. I think that where
we have concerns and where Mr. Hokama has expressed his concern, that as a representative from
whatever area, if you have members of your community that want to serve that are not on the General
Plan Advisory Committee or don't have potential conflicts, we as Council Members, should make every
effort to connect with the Administration and provide those names. I hope that there is a little bit better
communication in the future with regard to need for nominees because many times I have been
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approached if there have not been sufficient names submitted to see if there were any people that I
personally know that might be interested. Of course, I run into the same problem that Mr. DeLeon
outlined. People are so busy. They are working many, many jobs that it's very difficult to serve and
dedicate your time. The additional complication is that we had a very thin pool on Lanai for the GP AC.
We also have many people who are, as outlined, employees of Lanai Company. So what does that
leave? I would say that at this time I will be voting against the motion to disapprove only because as our
community changes so does the demographic. What's happening in my community are there are many
people moving in who are not current residents and to say that somebody doesn't have something
valuable to contribute - I was one of those malihinis who came to this body to offer my services and in
the same way I don't think that the length of time that you've lived on an island is always reflective of
your dedication and concern and caring for a community. So I will be voting against this with all
respect to the Member from that area. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any other discussion as it relates to the motion on the floor?
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'm sorry I wasn't here earlier, coming back from
Hana so I missed Chair Hokama's comments. But I do see that Mr. Otto is a relatively new resident of
Lanai but I think four or five years on a small island like Lanai is plenty of time to get acclimated, and
he does have a construction background, and he has worked with ... he has arborist experience, as well
as electrical infrastructure experience. And as Member Johnson said, it's very difficult to get people on
Lanai to serve because it's such a small community and it's so overwhelmingly weighted by Lanai
Company employees that when we get somebody who's not with Lanai Company, I think we should
welcome 'em that they're willing to give service to the community. So with all due respect to the Chair
I will not be supporting the motion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other comments from the body with regards to the
motion on the floor which is to deny Travis Scott Otto approval to the Lanai Planning Commission?
The Chair would like to offer his comments. The Chair is having a tough time with this one, as well. I
think there's been arguments very ... that are both very good on each side. I do understand the situation
on Lanai where sometimes the pickings are slim, if you will. However, I can understand Mr. Hokama's
viewpoint having been I guess himself being born and raised there and having gone through the I guess
the changes that the island has experienced over many, many years. And being on a Planning
Commission, as we all know, can be very complex. There's a lot of very difficult issues to deal with
and I think with Mr. Otto being somewhat of a new resident, although four to five years, it depends on
what you can interpret as new. Lanai being that it's such a unique place I think it's important that you
get your feet wet in as many areas as possible in the community. It's important to ingrain yourself with
the culture that's there, and I think if Mr. Otto would be open to making himself available for other
boards and commissions that may involve less time or maybe as less controversial or complex, that
might be a good start. And then at a later time be considered for nomination to the Lanai Planning
Commission. That might be one possible route to consider. So I will support the motion on the floor
but it will be with reservations, Members.
So with that being said, the Chair will call for the vote. All those in favor of the motion to deny signify
by saying aye.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Aye
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We have seven ayes and two noes, Members Anderson and Johnson. The motion
passes.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Hokama, Mateo,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

Councilmembers Anderson and Johnson.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

Pontanilla,

and

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

DISAPPROVAL of Travis Scott Otto to the Lanai Planning
Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we have now come to the nominee for the Maui Planning Commission, John
Guard IV. The Chair's recommendation is to approve the nomination.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: It's been moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Tavares. Member Kane, as the
maker ofthe motion.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: No discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no discussion.
nomination? Member Anderson.

Any comments from the body with regards to the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I'm very pleased to be approving John Guard's
nomination. This is a young man who was born and raised here and has come back to his community to
participate and build his future here and it's so important that we bring on the younger generation and so
rare that somebody from the younger generation is willing to serve in this capacity. This is a ... this is a
big obligation and I am particularly pleased that we have somebody like John Guard who's willing to
come forward and make his views known and I'm sure that he represents many, many people of his
generation who are trying to make a stake on Maui and find their future here. So I'm very pleased to be
able to vote yes for his nomination. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Member Anderson. Any other discussion as it relates to the
motion on the floor? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of John Guard IV to the Maui Planning Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: Next we have for consideration ... prior to that, Members, I just want to share some
infonnation for you. Staff has infonned me ... Member Johnson had a question with regards to Randy
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Endo's possibly being on the GPAC. I have been informed that he is not a member of the GPAC. And
on one of our earlier approvals for nominations to the Cost of Government, John Lundin, his term is
actually until March 31, 2007, not March 31, 2008. So just a point of information for the body.
So, Members, we are now on the Molokai Planning Commission nominee, Steve Chaikin. The Chair's
recommendation is to approve the nomination.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Mateo. Any discussion? Seeing none. All
those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. Chair will mark it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of Steven
Commission.

Chaikin to the Molokai Planning

CHAIR MOLINA: Next we are on the Police Commission nominee, John "Keone" Ball.
recommendation is to approve the nomination ofMr. Ball to the Police Commission.

The Chair's

VICE-CHAIR KANE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Moved by Member Kane, seconded by Member Tavares. Any discussion? Seeing none.
All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark that unanimous as well.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
PontanilJa, and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of John "Keone" Ball to the Police Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: I believe we have come to the end of everything here for this item, I hope. Okay. Staff,
can you confirm that with me. It's been a very, very lengthy agenda item today. I believe we have
come to an end. Any comments from the body before we move on to the next item? Seeing none.
Okay, Members, we will go to Committee ofthe Whole Item 2(18), which is also nominations to boards,
committees, and commissions.

COW-20S)

NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS

(VARIOUS)

(C.c. No. 05-20)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in respond of ... in receipt of a correspondence dated February 7, 2006
from the Mayor requesting consideration of the following: nominations to the Commission on Naming
Streets, Parks, and Facilities, Brooks Aoki and Michelle Kaopuiki-U galino; and to the Subdivision
Engineering Standards Committee, Walter Clur and Ernest Rezents. The Chair will yield the
microphone to Mr. DeLeon from the Mayor's Office to give comments to the Committee. Mr. DeLeon.
MR. DELEON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This item came separate because we had to do a separate recruitment
for these positions. We didn't have anybody apply for it and we were having difficulty. Michelle is a
Hawaiian linguist. They were looking for that very explicitly for the Naming Commission because of
the nature of the body. And the other two gentlemen, Mr. Clur, well both ofthem had to be recruited for
the position. So they both have ... Mr. Clur has background in construction and development, and of
course, Mr. Rezents is our arborist for the County. Not our official arborist but he's been in that
capacity for a long time.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Members, questions for Mr. DeLeon related to the
nominees to the both the respective commissions and committee? Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This is just one question for ... I know Mr. Rezents very well but just with
regard to any contracts or anything, is Mr. Rezents in any capacity paid by the County or compensated
either through contract or as an employee?
MR. DELEON: Not to my knowledge.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. Ijust wanted to make sure. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Member Johnson. And as a point of information for the body, we
have to approve or disapprove these nominations by April 10, 2006 or the nominees will be deemed
approved. Any other questions for Mr. DeLeon with regards to the nominees? Okay, seeing none. The
Chair will entertain a motion to consider all the nominees for the Commission on Naming Streets, Parks,
and Facilities and the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee for approval.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Been moved by Member Tavares and seconded by Member Kane. Any discussion?
Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark that unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of all nominations.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Members. And we will now go back to our first item listed on the
agenda for discussion and before we do that the Chair will officially have public testimony closed.
Earlier, the Chair mentioned 9:30 as the time to close it, but for procedures sake, we will make it official
official. So public testimony is closed on all items today.
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Okay, We have Committee of the Whole Item I (30), which is a settlement authorization of claims and
lawsuits.
COW-1(30)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (WILLIAM MELTON
V. COUNTY OF MAll. CASE NO. 7-01-00275\ (CC. No. 05-24\

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated February IS, 2006 from the
Corporation Counsel's Office requesting consideration of a proposed resolution entitled
"AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF WILLIAM MELTON V. COUNTY OF MAUl" case. The
purpose of the proposed resolution is to authorize settlement of the workers' compensation case for
alleged work-related injuries sustained on December 22, 2000. And from the Corporation Counsel's
Office here to give a brief overview of this matter we have Laureen Martin. Ms. Martin, proceed.
MS. MARTIN: Thank you, Chairman Molina. This is a workers' compensation claim arising out of workrelated injuries sustained on December 22, 2000. The injury arose from a motor vehicle accident. I am
requesting executive session in order to discuss medical and personnel issues.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Martin. Committee Members, any questions in open session for
Ms. Martin. Seeing none. The Chair will entertain a motion to convene in executive session for this
matter.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Hokama, seconded by-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: --Member Tavares. Any discussion? Seeing none. All those in favor signify by saying
aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

EXECUTIVE SESSION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we shall go ahead and recess this so we can make accommodations for executive
session on this matter. ... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:49 a.m.

(THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING ENTERED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT
10: 51 A.M. AND ENDED AT 11:01 A.M.)
RECONVENE:

11:03 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .. . (gavel) . .. The Committee of the Whole meeting for February 28 th is now reconvened in
open session. Members, we are on Committee of the Whole Item 1(30), which is the William Melton
versus County of Maui case.
COW-](30)

SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION OF CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS (WILLIA.,'\f MELTON
V. COUNTY OF MAUl. CASE NO. 7-01-00275) (Ce. No. 05-24)

CHAIR MOLINA: Any questions in open session to Corporation Counsel before the Chair makes his
recommendation? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chainnan, I would ask through your signature if you would please consider
a request to forward to Corporation Counselor the appropriate office whether it be Risk Management to
see if we have a program or a decision was made whether or not ... how we would deal with assisting
our employees with improving driving skills to help reduce potential accidents as well as financial
outlays for settlements.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would appreciate that, Mr. Chainnan. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Staffwill make note of that request. Any other questions in
open session for Corporation Counsel with regards to this matter?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chainnan, was it going to be your intent to defer this item or were you
open-CHAIR MOLINA: Well, the-- 41 -
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --to action?
CHAIR MOLINA: --Chair is open to both. I know Chief Akana was here earlier, however, due to a call-in
from the office he had to leave for a more pressing matter. The Chair is open to both, whatever the will
is of the body, to either move this along or we could defer it. Just to get a confirmation from
Corporation Counsel, is this a time sensitive matter?
MS. MARTIN: I don't believe a short delay would be a problem.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much. What is the pleasure of the body, Members? The Chair is
open to moving it, as well, but if the deferral is the recommendation of the majority, the Chair will honor
that. We'll start with Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I respect the request for having the Police
here but I don't ... I fail to see how it will impact what the request is before us and I have no problem
with moving forward with this request. I don't think it can be adjusted up or down basically and I think
the information that we're looking for we can acquire outside of this particular issue.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Tavares. Member Kane, followed by Member Johnson.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: I concur with Member Tavares. I think by deferral and if we're looking to speak with
resource personnel from the department, for me, I don't think it would make a difference given the fact
that this is a workers' compensation claim and that we're dealing with the settlement dollar amount
which I think is through State statute. It's very clearly defined as far as how they arrive at, you know,
figures in a settlement and that the information that we can gather from the department I think is more
.. .(change tape) . .. policy refined and adjustment related over a period of time and that we can use that
information for outside of the scope of what's before us today. So I would concur in moving forward.
It's not an objection on my part. Thank you, Member Kane. And Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Just for the record to Corporation Counsel, would anything that the
Police Department in your opinion have to say reflect the recommendation that has been made in
executive session to this body?
MS. MARTIN: No, it would not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Member Johnson. Any other discussion before the Chair
makes his recommendation? Seeing none. The Chair recommends approval of the resolution
authorizing settlement of the William Melton versus County ofMaui case.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Second.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Mateo, seconded by Member Kane. Any discussion?
Seeing no discussion. All those in favor signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you very much. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo,
Pontanilla and Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, moving right along. We are now on our last item for today - a very busy
one. A productive one, as well. This is on the matter of the advisory committees, Committee of the
Whole Item 43.

COW-43

ADVISORY COMMITTEES

(C.c.

No. 05-385)

CHAIR MOLINA: The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 05-385 from Councilmember
Kane, transmitting a draft bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE
CREATION OF ADVISORY COMMITTEES". The purpose of the draft bill is to authorize the Mayor
and Department Heads to create advisory committees. We have Mr. DeLeon representing the Mayor's
Office. At this point, the Chair will recognize Member Kane as the proposer of this bill. Member Kane.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for putting this item on the agenda
for discussion this morning. The intent of this, Mr. Chair, is primarily to recognize that many, and there
are many unofficial bodies that the Mayor has put together throughout the years, are not subject to the
Sunshine Law and are not ... and because of the way they've been formulated don't have to subject
themselves to public review.
As an example, this morning when we were talking about boards and commissions, some questions were
asked about procedurally how we arrived that nominations coming forward, whether or not a list of
people were recommended, did the Mayor choose people off the list. The point is is that nobody knows
what really happened because those bodies are convened in a way that doesn't allow the public to
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participate in that I think it's interesting for us to note that when we use words like efficiency and I will
draw a parallel, The word efficiency was also used by Mr. Garibaldi regarding public meetings with
Hawaii Super Ferry officials and Mr. Garibaldi's Chief Executive Officer for the Super Ferry recently
told the Maui News that the company had decided to form advisory boards of residents who represent a
cross section of the community, and was quoted as saying, "that we believe that that form will be the
most efficient at getting information out",
The Mayor used the same word this morning regarding efficiency and that is what would help him do
his job is by having efficient meetings by the use of these unofficial advisory boards. Mr. Chair, it's my
feeling and I'll try to keep it simple, that while efficiency is I believe a necessary component in
government, it shouldn't be the driver of how we arrive at decisions in government. And it, obviously in
my mind anyway, should be weighed against the importance of protecting the public's interest of
openness in government and full and open public participation. And I think that the public has made the
choice that open government is primary and first and foremost over efficiency and we're gonna struggle
with that continually.
So the objective of this ordinance is simply what it says is that it provides the Mayor with the tools along
with the departments . . . Department Heads with the approval of the Mayor to appoint advisory
committees for their departments and that for the sake of that Administration it shouldn't be subjected
on any future Administration. That it shouldn't exist beyond the term of the office and that the functions
of the advisory committee shall be limited to counsel and advice. Members of the advisory committee
shall not be paid but their authorized expenses shall be paid from appropriations to the appointing
authority. So if the Mayor's Office, as an example, wants to put forward advisory committees, then any
type of expenditure that goes out should be paid out of that program account, if you will.
There is a question, unfortunately, of ethics in Section 10-4 of our, of our ethics in the Charter. It's clear
that no public property or personnel of the Council ... County should be used for anything that's
unofficial, and in this case there's a question there. That public ... the public property, i.e. this
building, is being used for something that's unofficial and hasn't risen to the level of official advisory
boards. So this ordinance because the letter that the Mayor cited earlier this morning dated October 14,
2004 from OIP, basically it's saying that there isn't anything in the law that gives the Mayor any
authority to put forward a board - an unofficial advisory board. Therefore, they are unofficial and the
Mayor's already claimed that it's unofficial.
So I put this forward for discussion. I'm not here to advocate and take a strong passionate position
although I have a feeling about this and I think that it will be in our best interest to have favorable
consideration for this. But again, I put it on the table for discussion and I yield the floor.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kane. Committee Members, questions or comments with
regards to the proposed bill from Member Kane related to advisory committees? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I just wondered ifMr. DeLeon had any comments because this is, you
know, basically a policy that the Council's considering and what would be the feeling of the
Administration one way or the other.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Mr. DeLeon, if you will.
MR. DELEON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll read this statement. The purpose of this bill is to force the
informal advisory bodies the Mayor creates from time to time to come under the restrictions of Chapter
92. By the very nature, these bodies must be informal. They are one of the chief means the County
government has for reaching out into the community to find out what the community's concerns and
needs are. At this level of government, formal restrictions on when a committee can meet and when a
committee member can speak to another committee member serves only to restricts ... restrict the
function. We are talking about informal advisory bodies, not the State Legislature, not the County
Council, not the Planning Commissions, or the Liquor Commission. Actually, if this action succeeds,
then the Mayor's West Maui Advisory Committee will have more restrictive . . . will have more
restrictive meeting requirements than the State Legislature. These bodies seek the community's manao.
They advise the Executive Branch on what the community's concerns are. They help the Executive with
focus research, and in one case, even aid us in the management of a sensitive resource. They do not act
and they do not ... and their functions do not impact the lives of our citizens outside or bringing our
government closer to the people. We are talking about the Mayor's West Maui and Hana Advisory
Committees, the Mayor's Agriculture Advisory Committee, the Managing Director's Service Center
Advisory Committee, the Cruise Ship Task Force, the Muolea Point Advisory Committee, the Boards
and Commissions Advisory Committee, and the Kupuna Advisory Council. All of these have performed
their functions well. They have . . . there have been no complaints from the public about hidden
agendas. Requiring them to post meeting notices with Corporation Counsel six days before they meet
and .. .(inaudible). .. of committee members to communicate among themselves will not help their
function one iota. It will, in fact, limit this important yet necessary informal function. This is not to
mention the cost implications of such a requirement - secretaries, staff, attorneys, et cetera. We will be
adding inefficiencies at added cost. Our Administration's advisory committee system is not broken so
please don't try to fix it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Member Jolmson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I appreciate the comments that have been made. My question would
be then to Corporation Counsel because I believe that I saw from Corporation Counsel in terms of task
force and these advisory committees I believe I saw at one point some type of feedback or opinion on
that. Ms. Fujita Villarosa, would you have any knowledge of any response that Corporation Counsel has
given with regard to the way that business is being conducted currently?
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I'm not aware of any written opinion from my office. The one that I
am aware of is the one that was referred to earlier from the Office of Information Practices. Normally,
our office usually consults OlP when there are issues with regards to Sunshine Law. So, you know, our
office will, you know, when we advise the various or the Mayor or boards and commissions, we refer to
OlP's opinions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and so perhaps that was your transmittal then to us from OlP. Is that
correct?
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I'm not sure. Actually, the request for the opinion by OIP, this is the one dated
October 14,2004, was actually submitted directly by the Mayor's Office, not our office.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: And I'm not sure if ... how this letter was transmitted to Council.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and just for purposes of putting this on the record, just to summarize
what were the findings of OIP with regard to this question that has arisen and it's not just arisen during
this Administration, it's kind of been out there for a while. Could you just summarize?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yes. Basically, OIP reiterated its five-part test which is used to determine if a
board is subject to the Sunshine Law and the opinion's very short. It's about two-pages long and it
basically stopped at the first part of the test. I'm sorry, the second part of the test, which is that the
board be created by Constitution Statute Rule or Executive Order. So just based on that finding, OIP
concluded that the Mayor's Appointment Advisory Committee, which was the particular committee that
the Mayor's Office had asked OIP for an opinion on, that this committee is not subject to Sunshine Law.
The letter did not really go through the other criteria that you need to look at. So my suggestion and I
don't think our office has had an opportunity to review the draft ordinance yet, but would be if, if the
intent was to ensure that these types of boards and commissions be subject to Sunshine Law, that our
office would have to go through making sure that each of the five parts are going to be met in the
ordinance. And I can see a couple of areas that are unclear so we would probably clarify that when it
came to our office.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Just procedurally because I know that your office has been under
some constraints as far as the physical space that you occupy, also on some budgetary constraints, and I
know different people in your office have been actually assigned to litigation and other things. Because
you advise so many boards and commissions at the present time, how would your office see the addition
oflet's say if we acted on this and moved it forward, what kind of cost and what kind of issues would
you or your staffing be facing with regard to passage of something like this as opposed to the way that it
is current! y operating?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right. I appreciate that question. Usually, and not, not all the time, but usually
when an agency, board, or commission is advisory, they are on an on-call status with our office. So, in
other words, the attorney that's assigned to these types of advisory bodies needs to remain in their office
but they can at least be doing other work and then they're available, you know, if the committee needs
them. Then they just call us over and then we go down to the meeting. So, you know, this, you know,
being that, that these types of entities would be advisory, that, that would be one possibility that our
office would be able to do in order to accommodate, you know, the additional needs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: When the meetings take place because many of these ... because I've sat in
on some of them when they take place off premises when they also take place because it's evening when
most people can attend or on weekends - how does that impact your office staff with regard to the
scenario you've just outlined?
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MS, FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, our office, .. we can be available by phone. We're required to have access
to some kind of communication device when we're out of the office anyway. So if, if we needed to, we
could just be on-call by phone and either provide advice over the phone or we can go down to the
meeting if we needed to be there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. The Chair has just one question, prior to recognizing
Member Tavares, for Corporation Counsel. I'm just using a potential scenario here. If this bill were ...
let's just use a date of today. If it passes today, all prior advisory committees that have been formed
under the Mayor, would they be subject to this law or would they be grandfathered in under the way this
bill is structured right now?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That would be something maybe we could address in the actual ordinance itself,
you know, the discussion on what happens to bodies that are currently in existence. What I ... I would
think that the new ... the new committees would ... may need to be set up differently because like I
said there are these factors that we need to meet in order to have the bodies be subject to the Sunshine
Law and so I would think they would need to have rules, you know, Administrative Rules, Rules of
Practice and Procedure. And so all of these things, you know, we can put 'em ... put in the ordinance
much like when other boards and commissions are set up by ordinance. We have provisions in there
about the ability to set up rules and also in some instances what happens, you know, if there is an
existing body already in place - what happens to that, you know, the current body.
CHAIR MOLINA: So the Council could establish the criteria then. It would be up ... basically, up to this
body to decide whether to grandfather or not prior advisory committees?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah, because that would be an issue, I would think that it would be wise to
somehow address it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Yeah. Thank you. I think we should look at the greater issue here, and to
me, the greater issue is the roles of the Administrative Branch and the Legislative Branch. In the
Legislative Branch we have lots and lots of rules to help us do our work for the community. In the
Administrative Branch you have a Mayor who basically is in charge of all the departments. I think that
if you've got a, you know, beyond human Mayor, you never have to get advisory committees or groups
to help you. Now, Mr. DeLeon, sitting here has worked under two Administrations and in the former
Administration he was the Advisory Committee on Boards and Commissions, if I remember correctly,
alone. He alone - gathering all these applications for boards and commissions nominees, recruiting,
doing whatever, and it's just I mean you look at the numbers of people that we have here. So in this
particular Administration there is a group that helps with this process but it is still a Mayor recommends
those names to this body. This body has the final decision. There are other bodies out there that have
been created to help with I think better outreach into the community to get input from different citizens
- 47-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Couucil of the County of Maui

February 28, 2006

in different sectors as to how the County might better serve its citizenry. Things that greatly or that are
going to impact our citizens come here. We make the decision here in the policies through legislation.
You know, perhaps I never gave much of this too much thought in the past, but of recent times, I've
been giving these kinds of things a lot more thought, and in my mind already is there are a hundred ways
to get around this even if it passes. So what are we trying to do here with this? If this passes, I could
see the next Mayor saying, okay, I'm going to follow this thing and never have an advisory committee
of any kind. I could see that. How does this meet our needs to find out things for our . . . from our
community or get community members to work on things with us? What I do see is that a lot of the
intention of what might be a responsibility of an advisory committee would then be relegated to some
other group such as a community association. The Mayor might have a friend on a community
association, and say, you know, it'd be great if you guys would take up X issue, make it a subcommittee
of your community association and then you get back to me. That could happen. Or just out in like in
the Chamber of Commerce, get one member of the Chamber to take this on, a particular interest group.
So I don't ... I don't see that this accomplishes what we're trying to accomplish as far as making the
process open because I believe that if the Mayor or the Department Head or whoever is creating a
committee, they're going to be scrutinized by the community as to how open their process is.
I can recall as Director of Parks that we had many, many meetings about formulating crafts fair rules
and those meetings were by choice, and by necessity, open to the public. And while we didn't have staff
that staffed it, we didn't do the posting deadline as we should, we sent press releases to the paper, the
paper published them when we were having these meetings, and we had community participation. I
think that's our key concern here is the committee or the community allowed to or encouraged to or
given the opportunity to participate in these committees or these meetings. And to me, the scrutiny will
be from the community as to what happens with how the Mayor and his or her Administration proceeds
with these various committees and advisory whatever it is they're calling them - task forces and things
like that. So I would hope that we can recognize that there is a different role between the Administration
and the Legislative Body and that we not hamper a body's ability to involve the community. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: A question for Corporation Counsel, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. As I have re-read OlP's letter of October 14, 2004 from
Ms. Kern, Staff Attorney, for that office, say if I in my current position for the Council, there's no
resolution, there's nothing, and I say, you know what, I think I'll go and ask five, seven people if they
would volunteer and give me comments regarding, for example, tum in all the County parks bigger than
the neighborhood park to the State of Hawaii for their administration and operation. That wouldn't be I
guess illegal, right, according to this? Because there's no Constitution Statute Rule or Executive Order
that requires it or created it. They have no supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory powers, or
specific matters. They are not required to conduct meetings. They are not required to take official
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action. They are not an agency commission, authority, or committee of. So I could do that also and not
be required to Sunshine things?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I think that, that there are really two questions. The first question is whether
Council Members are authorized to do that. That's one question. The second question which is
addressed by the OIP opinion is that the Sunshine Law wouldn't apply. That's true. The Sunshine Law
wouldn't apply to that situation that you mentioned to me.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So when you just shared with us earlier that comment, Council Members
aren't prohibited, can we take it that means that since there's no law that is contrary or advocating it we
can proceed as the Mayor has proceeded?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: You're asking the question of whether Council's authorized to establish these
types of ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no, no. No whether Council is authorized. I'm saying I choose to call
five people up and say that, you know what, you going be my unofficial sounding board and you go talk
to your neighbors and you tell me whether or not you think it's a good idea to pursue to transfer all the
parks to the State, that's the part ... the State to take over all the parks operations. I would assume
under this and what I've heard today that that would be okay. I may call it the Chairman's Committee
or Advisory Committee or ... or Chairman's Parks ... Parks Group or whatever it be but that would be
okay.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah. I think that it has happened in the past. I think that, you know, initially
when our office was looking into this situation, we were looking at factors because I'm sure all of you,
you know, on a daily basis encounter people and you ask them for information on different subjects. So
I think that obviously that's just going to happen and you maybe happen to see the same people all the
time and you may ask them, you know, more questions than other people. But I guess with like with the
Mayor's groups it was more formal I guess in that it was sort of the same people meeting regularly and
so because of that that's why we, well, that's why the Mayor's Office had asked orp for an opinion.
Because we were, you know, in the earlier stages trying to figure out, well, what is this exactly? Are we
talking about you're just at a function and you ask people for information or you're formally setting up
the same group of people to meet. So, you know, it kind of really depends on the factual circumstances.
But again, the question about whether Council is authorized to establish a group like that is a separate
question that our office could look into. I don't believe we've been-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I not ask ...
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --asked that question.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My question is not in a form that the Council is.
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Or, I'm sorry ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The body is not taking action on this.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right. A Council Member I should say - whether or not a Council Member could
establish.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because it's been our understanding, any official Council action requires us
to follow Sunshine Law as the statute is currently written with proper notification, amount of lead time,
recordation, ability for comment on any agenda item. We understand that part. I'm just wondering if
we're given the same consideration for I guess we'd call it advisory, unofficial advisory committees or
groups. You don't see any problem with that?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, I think I'd like to ... I'd like our office to have an opportunity to look at
that because I don't think that that question has been posed directly. Even ... I'm not sure about the
Mayor's even if that was posed like the authority issue because I guess what the point I'm trying to
make is that the OlP opinion doesn't address that issue. It states that as a matter of fact, the Mayor's
Appointment Advisory Committee is not established by a statute rule. It doesn't ... there's no ... the
opinion doesn't go into does that mean that these committees are not allowed or not. It doesn't go to
that length. It only is, you know, focusing in on whether or not the Sunshine Law applies to these
committees. So, yeah, this opinion does not address the issue that you're talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I just was, you know, reviewing the portion where the Office
of Information Practices states the five-part test on whether or not it is an official board or not. And so I
just was providing you a hypothetical situation that a Member could enter into and according to this
opinion would not be a violation.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Of the Sunshine Law, right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's correct. Because it wouldn't meet the definition of a board-MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --as they have opined to the Mayor's Office.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yes, and that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So let me just ask you, please, Mr. Chairman, if you would? Thank
you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand that part and we understand the community's part to keep
informed or aware of what their government is doing. And so I understand the comments by ... (change
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tape) . .. my colleague, Ms. Tavares. I think one part that I would ask if you have comments to share
with us this morning is still yet the use of official facilities and potential expenditure of public funds.
Should that be of a issue or concern of this Committee that we may be advised to at least review that
part of the question more before we make any type of final consideration or decision?

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, as you know, the Code of Ethics, although our office provides
guidance on it we don't render opinions. Those opinions are and those findings are done by the Board
of Ethics. The Section 10-4, Prohibitions, Paragraph D, Use county property or personnel for other than
public activity or purpose - I don't see a problem, personally, with that. You know, because the ... for
instance, using the example with the Mayor's Advisory Committee, it's not for any ... anyone's
personal interest or purpose. You know, it's being done for the purpose of appointing members to
boards and commissions. So I don't see a problem with that, but again, our office usually ...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Let's say the task force on the cruise ships? That group?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
commISSIOns.

Not regarding a committee to help provide names for boards and

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So they meet regularly.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Since they coming up with a recommendation to the Mayor I'm assuming
someone's keeping records. So is that records confidential and considered work documents that is ...
that can be remain private and confidential to only that group? Or is that considered because it will help
I guess justify a recommendation to the Mayor, is that considered public information? How would your
office view those type of documents?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, the Open Records Law which is separate from the Sunshine Law,
basically, starts off with the premise that all records are open to the public. So this document, once it's
transmitted to the Mayor, you know, it would become in the possession of the Mayor. However, there
are exceptions to the Open Records Law and one of them is work-in-progress type documents. So it
would depend on the facts. We'd have to look at the document. Ifit looked like it was just part of the
Mayor's consideration and he's working ... gonna be working towards say a final report or some other
official document, then I don't believe that those working documents would be open to the public.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So since you brought up that those things we work toward a report of
an official document, does that make any difference? Because the official document is then I assume
have the Seal of the County and would represent the County Administration.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yeah, yeah. I was envisioning, you know, this is sort ofhypothetical-- 51 -
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --but I was envisioning something on the Mayor's letterhead - some document. I
don't know ... I don't know what the purpose of this committee is for. I don't know if it's to ... I don't
know, you know, but if it was some kind of official representation from the Mayor on the Mayor's
letterhead, then that document would be public. But the documents prior to that, you know, it's not.
They're just ... they're working documents and not subject to the Open Records Law.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay.

Thank you for your comment this morning.

Thank you,

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, any other questions for Corporation
Counsel with regards to this proposed bill? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'd first like to ask Mr. DeLeon, how many informal
advisory committees does the Mayor have and what are they?
MR. DELEON: To my knowledge, it's the list I read during my statement which was the West Maui and the
Hana Advisory Committees, the Agriculture Advisory Committee, the Managing Director's Service
Center Advisory Committee, the Cruise Ship Task Force, Muolea Advisory Committee, the Boards and
Commissions Advisory Committee, and the Kupuna Advisory Council.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do any of them meet regularly, you know, on a like once a month or
do they have a schedule that they adhere to?
MR. DELEON: Three of them do and the boards and commissions meets as an on-need basis.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what are the three that meet regularly?
MR. DELEON: Right now it would be West Maui. We're gonna get in the Hana one up again. That one fell
back because of the lack of time to be able to do both. The West Maui, the Agriculture Advisory
Committee, I believe that the Managing Director's Advisory Committee has completed its work, and the
Muolea Advisory Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. So if Corporation Counsel can confirm what I'm
saying ... what I'm about to say that I guess if they meet this five-part test, should we pass this bill and
I don't think it would be that hard to pass this five-parts if, if there's an ordinance adopted because
basically they're going to be advising the Mayor on all number and manner of things so I know that
you'd probably have to look at this specifically for each group because the fifth test which is required to
take official actions, that to me seems to be a bit ambiguous. I mean, what's official? If they're only
advising the Mayor and he mayor may not take their advice, would you like to speak to that Traci?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Sure. Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: I mentioned earlier that when I took a look at the draft bill, I saw that there were a
couple of factors that were ... that was unclear whether or not the ordinance would comply with the five
factors listed and one of them is the one that you mentioned, the required to take official actions.
Official actions don't have to be, well, official actions can be advisory. So, for instance, we have some
boards and commission whose official actions are to make recommendations to, you know, Planning
Commission, to the Mayor, or you know, to some other body so,-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The Council.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --so, right, or to Council, so, so that would be one of the things that we would
probably clarify in the bill that, that these committees shall make recommendations to the Mayor or
something like that. Just so that it's clear that that fifth element is met.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So then if we make that clear in this bill, then what you're saying
is that all these informal advisory committees would have to comply with Chapter 92, with the Sunshine
Law, which means they've got to post. According to Sunshine Law, post an agenda, do an agenda, post
it, have minutes done, be subject to a quorum, adopt by-laws or rules by which they operate. That takes
it out of the informal realm to me. It makes it ... I don't know, you know, I'm the first proponent of the
Sunshine Law but I think when you have committees that are ... whose whole intention is to give
advice that mayor may not be taken, I don't see why they need to comply with the Sunshine Law. Ijust
think it's a very heavy obligation to put on everybody just to have an informal body meet to discuss a
matter and give advice. And if we're gonna ... if we're gonna make that an official action, then we'd
better look at all the other informal committees that are within our County Code and start requiring them
to post an agenda and adopt regulations, and you know, that's an expensive endeavor that we're looking
at. I mean minutes for every meeting. I don't know how important that is.
The way the bill's written there's a request ... there's a requirement. It allows for Department Heads
with the approval of the Mayor to appoint advisory committees for their department. Well, we've
already got those required ... those types of committees throughout the County Code. So if we adopt
that, that's going to apply to these committees that are already, well, in existence according to the Code
- whether they exist or not, I'm not so certain, but the Code calls for them. One is Affordable Housing
Review Committee and it's basically made up of Department Heads. So I'm kind of in the line of
thinking of Member Tavares that we need to keep some kind of separation between the Legislative and
Executive Branch, and you know, all final decisions as far as policy is made by this Council, and we are
certainly operating under the Sunshine Law, and our taxpayers are paying for it. Every single thing said
in this Chamber is recorded and kept in minutes and available for people to go back and look and see
what happened in the past.
I just can't see forcing all these informal advisory committees to go through the onerous process of
adopting rules and regulations. They may only meet once or twice a year, and if they do meet regularly,
they might be able to make a quorum, and who decides how many people are going to be on the
committee in order to establish a quorum. The whole idea for these advisory committees is to assist the
Administrative Branch in bringing forward ideas or proposals for the Council to consider. So unless
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someone can convince me otherwise I haven't heard anything that makes ... that makes a case for this
to be such a pressing need. That's all I have to share right now. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, the Chair is aware of the time. We do have a
1:30 Budget meeting. The Chair's intent is to have this matter heard at a future time. I'd like to give
Corporation Counsel to give us some written comments for the Committee. The Chair sees this as a
matter of spreading the coverage of the Sunshine Law past that of the elected officials and on to
committees that have been formed by the Administration versus citizens who feel they have a right to
participate free of restrictions. So I'd like to get more input as well, not only from the Administrative
Branch and the Corporation Counsel's Office, but I think it's good to hear from the community
members. We are held to a standard of following the spirit of the Sunshine Law. Now it becomes a
question of the citizens who hold us to these standards, do they themselves as members of a non-elected
body or committee want the same application on them? So I want to thank Member Kane for bringing
this matter for discussion today. It's definitely resulted with a spirited one and a lot of interesting
questions and issues have arisen. So at this time I would ask the Committee Members if you have any
additional questions that Staff can forward to the Corporation Counsel's Office or to the Mayor's Office,
please feel free to do so. And the Chair of this Committee would like to bring this matter back once the
Budget Session is concluded for further discussion. Any final comments before we adjourn, Members?
If there are no objections, the Chair would like to defer Committee of the Whole Item 43.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members. One announcement - the Chair would like to wish
you all a Happy Fat Tuesday, also Malasada Day, I've been told as part of Portuguese Heritage Week. I
know Member Tavares is the resident expert on the nuances of malasadas so we want to definitely
mention that. So if there are no other announcements, the Chair would like to thank you all for your
professionalism and dedication for this February 28, 2006. The Committee of the Whole meeting for
this date is now adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..
ADJOURN: 11:56 a.m.
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